
1

Swyddog Cyswllt:
Ceri Shotton 01352 702305
ceri.shotton@flintshire.gov.uk

At: Cyng Ian Dunbar (Cadeirydd)

Y Cynghorwyr: Helen Brown, Geoff Collett, David Cox, Ron Davies, Adele Davies-
Cooke, Mared Eastwood, Veronica Gay, Ray Hughes, Dennis Hutchinson, 
Brian Lloyd a Kevin Rush

17 Chwefror 2021

Annwyl Gynghorydd,

RHYBUDD O GYFARFOD ANGHYSBELL
PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CYMUNED, TAI AC ASEDAU

DYDD MAWRTH, 23 CHWEFROR, 2021 10.00 AM

Yn gywir

Robert Robins
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Sylwch: Oherwydd y cyfyngiadau presennol ar deithio a’r gofyniad am gadw pellter 
corfforol, ni chynhelir y cyfarfod hwn yn y lleoliad arferol. Bydd hwn yn gyfarfod 
rhithiol a bydd ‘presenoldeb’ yn gyfyngedig i Aelodau’r Pwyllgor yn unig. Bydd y 
cyfarfod yn cael ei recordio.

Os oes gennych unrhyw ymholiadau, cysylltwch ag aelod o’r Tîm Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd ar 01352 702345.

Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus



2

R H A G L E N

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU 
Pwrpas: I dderbyn unrhyw ymddiheuriadau.

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD (GAN GYNNWYS DATGANIADAU CHWIPIO) 
Pwrpas: I dderbyn unrhyw ddatganiad o gysylltiad a chynghori’r Aelodau 

yn unol a hynny.

3 COFNODION (Tudalennau 3 - 8)
Pwrpas: I gadarnhau, fel cofnod cywir gofnodion y cyfarfod ar 20 Ionawr 

2021.

4 RHAGLEN GWAITH I’R DYFODOL A OLRHAIN GWEITHRED (Tudalennau 
9 - 18)
Adroddiad Hwylusydd Trosolwg a Chraffu yr Cymuned a Menter

Pwrpas: I Ystyried y flaenraglen waith Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu 
Cymuned, Tai ac Asedau a rhoi gwybodaeth i’r Pwyllgor o’r 
cynnydd yn erbyn camau gweithredu o’r cyfarfod blaenorol.

DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL (MYNEDIAD I WYBODAETH) 1985 - 
YSTYRIED GWAHARDD Y WASG A'R CYHOEDD

Mae’r eitem a ganlyn yn cael ei hystyried yn eitem eithriedig yn rhinwedd 
Paragraff(au) 14 Rhan 4 Atodiad 12A o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 (fel y 
cafodd ei diwygio)

Mae’r adroddiad yn cynnwys manylion contractau arfaethedig ac mae’r budd 
i’r cyhoedd o ddatgelu’r wybodaeth yn cael ei gysgodi gan y budd i’r cyhoedd 
o beidio â’i datgelu nes mae’r contract wedi’i ddyrannu.

5 PROSES GAFFAEL Y GWASANAETH ATGYWEIRIO TAI I GAEL SYSTEM 
DREFNU ADNODDAU DEINAMIG AC ADOLYGU PROFFIL SWYDD YR 
ARWEINYDD TÎM (Tudalennau 19 - 42)
Adroddiad Prif Swyddog (Tai ac Asedau) - Aelod Cabinet dros Dai

Pwrpas: Trafod y dewisiadau i brynu a gweithredu datrysiad 
Atgyweiriadau Tai symudol sy’n cynnwys modiwl atgyweirio, y 
trwyddedau cysylltiedig a Threfnydd Adnoddau Deinamig (DRS).



COMMUNITY, HOUSING & ASSETS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
20 JANUARY 2021

Minutes of the meeting of the Community, Housing & Assets Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee of Flintshire County Council held as a remote attendance meeting on 
Wednesday, 20 January 2021

PRESENT: Councillor Ian Dunbar (Chairman)
Councillors: Helen Brown, Geoff Collett, Ron Davies, Adele Davies-Cooke, 
Mared Eastwood, Veronica Gay, Dennis Hutchinson, Brian Lloyd and Kevin Rush

APOLOGY: Councillor Ray Hughes

ALSO PRESENT: Councillors Marion Bateman, Patrick Heesom and Paul 
Shotton were present as observers together with Rob Dewey (Chair of Standards 
Committee)

CONTRIBUTORS: Councillor Dave Hughes (Cabinet Member for Housing); 
Councillor Billy Mullin (Cabinet Member for Corporate Management and Assets), 
Chief Officer (Housing and Assets), Housing Programmes Manager, Revenues 
Manager, Benefits Manager, Housing and Prevention Senior Manager, Housing 
and Assets Senior Manager, Strategic Finance Manager and Housing Strategy 
Manager

Strategic Performance Advisor - for minute number 37

IN ATTENDANCE: Community & Enterprise Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator, 
Democratic Services Officer and Civic & Member Services Officer

29. COUNCILLOR KEVIN HUGHES

The Chairman led the Committee in a silent tribute to Councillor Kevin 
Hughes who had sadly passed away.

30. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

31. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 16 December 2020 were approved as 
a correct record, as moved and seconded by Councillors Rush and Eastwood.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes be approved as a correct record.

Tudalen 3

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 3



32. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME AND ACTION TRACKING

The Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator presented the latest Forward Work 
Programme including a number of changes since the previous meeting.  On 
action tracking, all outstanding actions had been completed.

The recommendations were moved and seconded by Councillors 
Eastwood and Davies-Cooke.

RESOLVED:

(a) That the Forward Work Programme be noted;

(b) That the Facilitator, in consultation with the Chair of the Committee, be 
authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme between meetings, as the 
need arises; and

(c) That the progress made in completing the outstanding actions be noted.

33. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) 30 YEAR FINANCIAL BUSINESS 
PLAN

The Committee received a report to consider the proposed Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) budget for 2021/22 and the draft HRA 30 year Financial 
Business Plan.  The Chief Officer (Housing and Assets) and Strategic Finance 
Manager gave a presentation covering:

 Welsh Government Rent Policy
 Proposed Rent Uplift 2021/22
 Welsh Government - Wider Rental Agreement
 Service Charges
 Other Income
 Invest to Save Proposal
 Proposed Pressures and Efficiencies
 Reserves
 HRA Business Plan 2021/22
 HRA Capital Investment
 Capital Programme
 Development of the revised WHQS
 Capital Programme 2021/22
 HRA Capital Funding 2021/22

The proposals set out in the report met requirements of the revised rent 
policy by Welsh Government (WG).  The proposed rent uplift for 2021/22 would 
ensure that no individual tenant paid more than the maximum allowed under the 
policy and progressed towards re-addressing the disparity between rents under 
and at target rent whilst seeking to make rent charges to all tenants more 
equitable.  The proposal to freeze service charges for 2021/22 at current rates 

Tudalen 4



would help to protect tenants, many of whom were experiencing financial difficulty 
from the emergency situation, and would allow for further work to be carried out to 
ensure services provided value for money.

On Capital Programme investment, the business plan would reflect the 
extended completion deadline of the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) 
granted by WG as a result of the national emergency.  The model for 
decarbonisation was one of the areas under development.

In response to a question from the Chair, the Chief Officer referred to the 
investment strategy which helped to reduce the cost of energy in tenants’ homes.

The recommendations, which were amended to reflect the debate, were 
moved by Councillor Lloyd and seconded by Councillor Davies-Cooke.

RESOLVED:

(a) That the Committee supports the HRA Budget for 2021/22 as set out in the 
appendices to the report;

(b) That the Committee supports the proposed rent increase of up to 0.68% 
(plus up to £2);

(c) That the Committee supports a garage rent increase of £0.20 per week and 
a garage plot increase of £0.03 per week;

(d) That the Committee supports freezing for one year an increase in Service 
Charge recovery; and

(e) That the Committee supports the proposed HRA Capital programme for 
2021/22 as set out in Appendix C of the report.

34. WELSH GOVERNMENT CONSULTATION ON THE PROPOSED HOUSING 
REVENUE MANUAL

The Chief Officer (Housing and Assets) presented a report to seek 
feedback on the draft Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Manual which had been 
developed by Welsh Government (WG) to provide guidance to councils and to 
bring clarity and consistency around the activities which could be undertaken in 
the HRA.  Feedback from the Committee would help inform the Council’s formal 
response to the consultation.

It was agreed that Members would refer any written comments directly to 
the Chief Officer to form part of the consultation response.

The recommendations were moved by Councillor Gay and seconded by 
Councillor Lloyd.

Tudalen 5



RESOLVED:

(a) That the report be noted; and

(b) That Members of the Committee send comments directly to the Chief 
Officer (Housing & Assets), to inform the Council’s consultation response 
to Welsh Government.

35. HOUSING STRATEGY UPDATE

The Chief Officer (Housing and Assets) presented a report on progress 
towards meeting the priorities set out in the action plan for the Local Housing 
Strategy 2019-24.

Despite the emergency situation, good progress had been made on the 
extensive action plan to deliver key priorities.  Further updates would continue to 
be shared with the Committee.

During the item, the Chairman led tributes to the Housing Programmes 
Manager (Mel Evans) who was due to leave the Council.  The Chief Officer took 
the opportunity to praise Mel for his dedication and commitment to his work over 
the years.

The recommendation was moved and seconded by Councillors Davies and 
Rush.

RESOLVED:

That the Committee supports the progress made as part of the Housing Strategy 
Action Plan, as outlined within the report.

36. STRATEGIC HOUSING AND REGENERATION PROGRAMME (SHARP) 
UPDATE REPORT

The Chief Officer (Housing and Assets) introduced a report on progress 
with the Council’s Strategic Housing and Regeneration Programme (SHARP) to 
date.  The report also provided an update on housing schemes delivered through 
other mechanisms outside SHARP.

The Housing Programmes Manager provided an overview of the key 
points.  Updated figures on the current position on SHARP showed that an 
additional ten affordable rent properties had increased that total to 93, with 149 
social rented schemes delivered.  It was anticipated that work on further 71 social 
rented units would start in April/May 2021.  Formal confirmation was awaited on a 
successful bid for grant funding from the Welsh Government (WG) Land Release 
Fund programme to progress a new social and affordable housing scheme on 
existing Council owned land.

Tudalen 6



It was estimated that approximately 600 properties had been delivered to 
date through a combination of SHARP and non-SHARP schemes.

In response to comments from the Chairman, the Housing Programmes 
Manager reported on feasibility work on the site of the former Canton depot.  He 
would pass on concerns to Edwards Homes about the advertisement of new 
properties that were located in Connah’s Quay.

Councillor Davies expressed his thanks to the Housing department for all 
their work.

The recommendations were moved and seconded by Councillors Davies 
and Rush.

RESOLVED:

(a) That the progress with the Strategic Housing and Regeneration 
Programme (SHARP) be noted;

(b) That the Committee supports the use of the detailed delivery routes to 
deliver new social and affordable rent homes including the Housing 
Construction North and Mid-Wales Framework Agreement; and

(c) That the Committee supports the re-allocation of the annual budget of 
£121k for scheme investigation and feasibility works from SHARP to 
support new delivery routes.

37. COUNCIL PLAN 2021/22

The Chief Officer (Housing and Assets) presented the proposed Council 
Plan for 2021/22 with specific focus on the Committee’s respective portfolios 
aligned to priorities under the six themes.  The content of the Council Plan for 
2021/22 would continue to take into account continued recovery in addition to 
longer term strategic objectives.

The Chairman agreed that the majority of issues captured in the document 
were appropriate for the Committee.  He suggested that Members of the 
Committee refer any comments directly to the officers.

Councillor Mullin spoke about workstreams under the Poverty theme such 
as helping to enable pupils to continue their learning from home.

The Facilitator explained that each Overview & Scrutiny Committee would 
consider performance on their relevant areas, with an overview of performance 
under all themes to capture cross-cutting issues.

The recommendation was moved and seconded by Councillors Davies and 
Hutchinson.

Tudalen 7



RESOLVED:

That the Committee notes the developed themes of the Council Plan 2021/22 
prior to approval by Cabinet.

38. LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 - TO 
CONSIDER THE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Councillor Hutchinson moved exclusion of the press and public for the 
following item, which was seconded by Councillor Brown.

RESOLVED:

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting as the following item was 
considered to be exempt by virtue of paragraph 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

39. NORTH EAST WALES (NEW) HOMES BUSINESS PLAN 2020-2049

The Housing Programmes Manager presented a report on the North East 
Wales (NEW) Homes Draft Business Plan for 2020-2049 which set out the key 
elements of the company’s proposed Development Strategy to increase the 
number of affordable rent properties delivered over the next three years.  The 
report detailed progress made against targets and the impact from the emergency 
situation.

The recommendation was moved and seconded by Councillors Davies and 
Rush.

RESOLVED:

That the NEW Homes Business Plan 2020-2049 be approved.

40. MEMBERS OF THE PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the press in attendance.

(The meeting started at 10am and ended at 11.20am)

…………………………
Chairman

Tudalen 8



COMMUNITY HOUSING  & ASSETS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Tuesday, 23rd February 2021

Report Subject Forward Work Programme and Action Tracking

Report Author Community Housing & Assets Overview & Scrutiny 
Facilitator

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine the 
Forward Work programme of the Committee of which they are Members.  By 
reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme Members are able to 
ensure it is Member-led and includes the right issues.  A copy of the Forward Work 
Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration which has been 
updated following the last meeting.

The Committee is asked to consider, and amend where necessary, the Forward 
Work Programme for the Community Housing & Assets Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee.

The report also shows actions arising from previous meetings of the Community 
Housing & Assets Overview & Scrutiny Committee and the progress made in 
completing them.  Any outstanding actions will be continued to be reported to the 
Committee as shown in Appendix 2. 

RECOMMENDATION

1 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme and 
approve/amend as necessary.

2 That the Facilitator, in consultation with the Chair of the Committee be 
authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme between meetings, as 
the need arises. 

3 That the Committee notes the progress made in completing the 
outstanding actions. 

Tudalen 9

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 4



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME AND ACTION 
TRACKING

1.01 Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number 
of sources.  Members can suggest topics for review by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can 
be referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council 
or Chief Officers.  Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet 
Work Programme and the Improvement Plan.

1.02 In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of 
significance’ to be applied.  This can be achieved by asking a range of 
questions as follows:

1. Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
2. Is it an area of major change or risk?
3. Are there issues of concern in performance?
4. Is there new Government guidance of legislation?
5. Is it prompted by the work carried out by Regulators/Internal Audit?
6. Is the issue of public or Member concern?

1.03 In previous meetings, requests for information, reports or actions have 
been made.  These have been summarised as action points.  Following a 
meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee in 
July 2018, it was recognised that there was a need to formalise such 
reporting back to Overview & Scrutiny Committees, as ‘Matters Arising’ 
was not an item which can feature on an agenda.

1.04 It was suggested that the ‘Action tracking’ approach be trialled for the 
Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee.  Following a 
successful trial, it was agreed to extend the approach to all Overview & 
Scrutiny Committees.   

1.05 The Action Tracking details including an update on progress is attached at 
Appendix 2.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 None as a result of this report.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 In some cases, action owners have been contacted to provide an update 
on their actions.

Tudalen 10



4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 None as a result of this report.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1 – Draft Forward Work Programme

Appendix 2 – Action Tracking for the Community Housing & Assets OSC.

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 Minutes of previous meetings of the Committee as identified in Appendix 2.

Contact Officer: Ceri Shotton
Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator

Telephone: 01352 702305
E-mail: ceri.shotton@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of 
the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Tudalen 11

mailto:ceri.shotton@flintshire.gov.uk


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



COMMUNITY, HOUSING & ASSETS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME                            
CURRENT FWP

Date of meeting Subject Purpose of Report Scrutiny Focus Report Author Submission 
Deadline

Wednesday 10th 
March 2021

Homelessness

Performance of the 
WHQS programme

Flintshire Food 
Enterprise and the 
Food Poverty 
Response

To provide an update on the 
work undertaken to prevent 
homelessness across Flintshire.

To outline the work being 
undertaken in regenerating the 
Council’s existing housing stock 

To outline the work of the 
Flintshire Food Enterprise and 
its response to Food Poverty

Assurance Monitoring 

Information Sharing

Information Sharing

Housing and 
Prevention Senior 
Manager

Housing & Assets 
Senior Manager

Benefits Manager

Wednesday 19th 
May 2021
10am

Empty Homes

Community Asset 
Transfer Programme

NEWydd Cleaning and 
Catering

To provide an overview of the 
work undertaken by the Empty 
Homes Service, and outline the 
new approach Welsh 
Government is promoting in 
respect of this area

To provide an update on the 
Community Asset Transfer 
Programme

To provide an update on the 
Business Plan for NEWydd 
Cleaning and Catering Services

Information Sharing

Assurance Monitoring

Assurance Monitoring

Public Protection 
Manager – Community

Chief Officer (Housing 
& Assets)

Facilities Services 
Operations Manager

T
udalen 13



COMMUNITY, HOUSING & ASSETS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME                            
Wednesday 16th 
June 2021

Housing Rent Income - 
Year end outturn and 
latest position for 
2021/22

Disabled Facilities 
Grant (DFG)

Welfare Reform 
Update

Renting Homes 
(Wales) Act 2016

To provide the Year end outturn 
for 202021 and an operational 
update on rent collection and 
current arrear levels for 
2021/22.

To provide an update on the 
ongoing work to improve the 
service

To provide an update on the 
impact of Welfare Reform on 
Flintshire Residents.

To provide an update on the 
Renting Homes (Wales) Act 
2016 following it becoming fully 
enacted.

Monitoring Assurance

Assurance Monitoring

Monitoring Assurance

Information Sharing 

Revenues Manager 

Benefits Manager

Benefits Manager

Chief Officer (Housing 
& Assets)

Items to be scheduled

 Sheltered Housing Review – Reports to be submitted to Committee meetings as appropriate and agreed at the Committee meeting held 
on 4th November, 2020.

T
udalen 14



COMMUNITY, HOUSING & ASSETS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME                            
REGULAR ITEMS

Month Item Purpose of Report Responsible / Contact 
Officer

Quarterly / 
Annual

Performance Reporting To consider performance outturns for improvement targets 
against directorate indicators.

Chief Officer (Housing and 
Assets)

Chief Officer (Planning, 
Environment and Economy)

Six monthly Welfare Reform Update – 
including Universal Credit

To update Members on the impact of Welfare Reform and the 
cost to the Council.

Benefits Manager

Six monthly Update on North East Wales 
Homes & Property Management

To update Members on the work of the North East Wales 
Homes & Property Management 

Housing Strategy Manager

Annually – 
September 

WHQS Capital Programme – 
Delivery review update

To provide an update on progress of the Welsh Housing 
Quality Standards (WHQS), that the Council is delivering 
through its Capital Investment Programme.  Report to include 
information around the use of local labour and number of 
apprentices and school leavers.

Chief Officer (Housing and 
Assets)

Quarterly Update on Housing Rent Income To provide an update on rent collection and current arrear 
levels

Revenues Manager

T
udalen 15



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn bw
rpasol



ACTION TRACKING                                                                                                                                                                            APPENDIX 2

ACTION TRACKING FOR THE COMMUNITY, HOUSING & ASSETS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Meeting Date Agenda item Action Required Action
Officer(s)

Action taken Timescale

There were no actions arising from the last Committee meeting held on 20th January, 2021.  All actions arising from previous meetings have 
been completed as previously reported to the Committee.

T
udalen 17



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn bw
rpasol



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 19

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 5
Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



Dogfen Gyfyngedig - Ni ddylid ei chyhoeddi

Tudalen 25

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol


	Rhaglen
	3 Cofnodion
	4 Rhaglen Gwaith I’r Dyfodol a Olrhain Gweithred
	Appendix 1 - Draft Forward Work Programme
	Appendix 2 – Action Tracking for the Community Housing & Assets OSC

	5 Proses gaffael y Gwasanaeth Atgyweirio Tai i gael System Drefnu Adnoddau Deinamig ac Adolygu Proffil Swydd yr Arweinydd Tîm
	Enc. 1 for Housing Repairs Service procurement of a Dynamic Resource Scheduling System and Review of the Team Leader Job Profile


